
LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MEETING AGENDA

June 20, 2017

1. 9:00 a.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda
a. RE: June 6, 2017 Minutes and Summary Minutes
b. RE: June 14, 2017 Board of Equalization Minutes and Summary Minutes
c. RE: Tobacco Licenses

2. 9:05 a.m. Claims (5 min)

3. 9:10 a.m. Human Services (35 min)

4. 9:45 a.m. Pam Simonette, Auditor - Treasurer (30 min)
a. Ditch Liens - CD #21, 40, 57 & 70

5. 10:15 a.m. Southern Minnesota Initiative Foundation (15 min)

6. 10:30 a.m. Nik Kadel, Ditch Inspector (20 min)
a. RE: County Ditch 48
b. RE: Buffer Resolution

7. 10:50 a.m. Ann Traxler (5 min)
a. RE: Trailer

8. 10:55 a.m. Nancy Domonoske (5 min)
a. RE: Introduce "New" Extension Staff Casandra Story, 4H PC and Kristi Frederick, 

4H summer intern

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 1 / 85



9. 11:00 a.m. Brett Mason, Sheriff (5 min)
a. RE: Snowmobile
b. RE: Treadmill
c. RE: Out of State Travel Request

10. 11:05 a.m. Darrell Pettis, County Administrator/Engineer
a. RE: HR Items
b. RE: CPA Projections
c. RE: JD 5 - Redetermination discussion
d. RE: CD 48 - Record Correction

11. Commissioner Committee Reports

12. Future Meetings

13. ATV-GOLF CART WORKSHOP

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 2 / 85



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, June 20, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 1

9:00 a.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda

RE: June 6, 2017 Minutes and Summary Minutes

RE: June 14, 2017 Board of Equalization Minutes and Summary Minutes

RE: Tobacco Licenses

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 3 / 85



Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting
June 6, 2017

The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Tuesday, June 6, 2017 
at 9:00 a.m. in the Courthouse at Le Center, Minnesota.  Those members present were: Steve 
Rohlfing, Dave Gliszinski, John King and Joe Connolly. Lance Wetzel was excused. Darrell 
Pettis and Brent Christian were also present.

On motion by Connolly, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the agenda for the business of the day.

On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
consent agenda:

● Approved the May 23, 2017 County Board Minutes and Summary Minutes
●Approved May 2017 Transfers:
#1654 Transfer 3,966.00 from Human Services to Revenue(A87 quarter ending 3-31-17)
#1655 Transfer  3,921.00 from Agency to Revenue (May Landshark)
#1656 Transfer 634.00 from Road & Bridge to Ditch (Ditch #23 Lien)

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
to open the 2017 – 2021 Capital Improvement Plan Public Hearing at 9:00 a.m.

Darrell Pettis gave an overview of the Capital Improvement Plan draft.

Bruce Kimmel with Ehlers gave a short presentation and was available for questions. There were 
3 public comments.

On motion by King, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
close the 2017 – 2021 Capital Improvement Hearing.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the following Resolution Relating to Approval of a Capital Improvement Plan and Issuance of 
General Obligation Capital Improvement Plan Bonds, Series 2017A:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners (the Board) of Le Sueur County, Minnesota 
(the Issuer), as follows:

WHEREAS, the Issuer has published notice of its intent to hold a hearing on the issuance 
of capital improvement plan bonds under Minnesota Statutes, Section 373.40 (the 
“Bonds”) and on its proposed Capital Improvement Plan (the “Plan”), at least fourteen 
(14) but not more than twenty-eight (28) days prior to the date hereof, pursuant to and in 
accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 373.40 (the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, the Board held a public hearing on the date hereof on the Plan and on the 
issuance of the Bonds to finance capital to finance the construction of a new County 
highway maintenance shop and a portion of the costs associated with the construction of 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 4 / 85



a new Justice Center as detailed in the County's 2017-2021 Capital Improvement Plan. 
The County will pay debt service with future ad valorem property taxes. As described in 
the Act and in the Plan (the “Project”); 

WHEREAS, the Board has considered the factors described in subdivision 3 of the Act 
with respect to the Plan;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board hereby a) approves the Plan, and (b) 
authorizes the issuance of the Bonds in an amount not to exceed $2,565,000.  Pursuant to 
Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.60, Subdivision 2, paragraph (9), Ehlers & Associates is 
authorized to prepare and distribute an Official Statement and to solicit proposals for the Bonds 
on behalf of the County on a negotiated basis.  This Board shall meet on July 18, 2017, for the 
purpose of considering proposals for the purchase of the Bonds and of taking such action thereon 
as may be in the best interests of the County.

On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
following Resolution Providing for the Sale of $2,565,000 General Obligation CIP Bonds, Series 
2017A:

A. WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Le Sueur County, Minnesota has heretofore 
determined that it is necessary and expedient to issue the County's $2,565,000 General 
Obligation CIP Bonds, Series 2017A (the "Bonds"), to finance the construction of a new 
County highway maintenance shop and a portion of the costs associated with the construction 
of a new Justice Center; and 

B. WHEREAS, the County has retained Ehlers & Associates, Inc., in Roseville, Minnesota 
("Ehlers"), as its independent municipal advisor for the Bonds in accordance with Minnesota 
Statutes, Section 475.60, Subdivision 2(9);

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Le Sueur 
County, Minnesota, as follows:

1. Authorization.  The Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes Ehlers to assist the County 
for the sale of the Bonds.

2. Meeting; Proposal Opening.  The Board of Commissioners shall meet at 9:00 a.m. on July 
18, 2017, for the purpose of considering proposals for and awarding the sale of the Bonds.

3. Official Statement.  In connection with said sale, the officers or employees of the County are 
hereby authorized to cooperate with Ehlers and participate in the preparation of an official 
statement for the Bonds and to execute and deliver it on behalf of the County upon its 
completion.

On motion by Connolly, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
following Resolution Providing for the Sale of $7,325,000 General Obligation Jail Bonds, Series 
2017B:

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 5 / 85



A. WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Le Sueur County, Minnesota has heretofore 
determined that it is necessary and expedient to issue the County's $7,325,000 General 
Obligation Jail Bonds, Series 2017B (the "Bonds"), to finance a portion of the costs 
associated with construction of a new County Jail facility; and

B. WHEREAS, the County has retained Ehlers & Associates, Inc., in Roseville, Minnesota 
("Ehlers"), as its independent municipal advisor for the Bonds in accordance with Minnesota 
Statutes, Section 475.60, Subdivision 2(9);

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Le Sueur County, 
Minnesota, as follows:

1. Authorization.  The Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes Ehlers to assist the County 
for the sale of the Bonds.

2. Meeting; Proposal Opening.  The Board of Commissioners shall meet at 9:00 a.m. on July 
18, 2017, for the purpose of considering proposals for and awarding the sale of the Bonds.

3. Official Statement.  In connection with said sale, the officers or employees of the County are 
hereby authorized to cooperate with Ehlers and participate in the preparation of an official 
statement for the Bonds and to execute and deliver it on behalf of the County upon its 
completion.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
following Resolution Authorizing the County to Enter into a Credit Enhancement Program 
Agreement with the Minnesota Public Facilities Authority:

A. WHEREAS, the County Board of Le Sueur County, Minnesota (the "County") proposes to 
issue its General Obligation Jail Bonds, Series 2017A (the "Bonds"), the proceeds of which 
will be used to finance a portion of the construction of a new County Jail facility; and

B. WHEREAS, the County Board hereby determines it is in the best interest of the County to 
apply to the Minnesota Public Facilities Authority (the "Authority") for credit enhancement 
of the Bonds;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County Board of Le Sueur County, Minnesota, 
as follows:

1. Approval of the Authority's Credit Enhancement Program Agreement.   The Authority's 
Credit Enhancement Program Agreement (the "Agreement") is hereby approved, the same 
being before the County Board and made a part of this resolution by reference.

2. Authorization to Sign Agreement and Related Forms.  The County Board Chair and the 
County Administrator are authorized to sign the Agreement on the County's behalf and to 
execute any other related forms prescribed by the Authority with respect to the Agreement.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 6 / 85



3. Agreement to Comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 446A.086.  The County is entering 
into the Agreement with the Authority pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 446A.086 (the 
"Act") and the County hereby agrees to comply with and be bound by the provisions of the 
Act.

4. Submission of the Agreement.  The County Board Chair and County Administrator are 
hereby authorized to submit, on the County's behalf, the Agreement to the Authority, 
together with the nonrefundable application fee in the amount of $500.

On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
claims for Human Services:
Financial:            $ 67,375.98 
Soc Services:      $ 89,036.74

Sue Rynda, Human Services Director appeared before the Board with one item for approval.

On motion by King, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved and 
authorized the Board Chair to sign a Regional Administrative Agency Cooperative Agreement 
Fraud Investigation Program.

Pam Simonette, Auditor – Treasurer appeared before the Board with two items for approval.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved a 
County issued credit card for Richard Droog in the Sheriff’s Office.

On motion by Connolly, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
a repurchase application for Theresa Johnson for parcel #04.780.0160.

Nik Kadel, Le Sueur County Ditch Inspector appeared before the Board with an update on 
County ditches.

On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board directed the 
Ditch Inspector to get at least two repair quotes for all ditch repair requests over $15,000 and 
quotes over $25,000 will require Board approval.

Cindy Westerhouse, Human Resources Director came before the Board with several items for 
discussion and approval.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the Public Employees Retirement Association Policy Officer Declaration for Richard Droog, 
effective May 16, 2017. 

On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
hire Caitlin Meyer as a full time Case Aide in Human Services, as a Grade 4, Step 1 at $15.97 
per hour, effective June 26, 2017.   

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 7 / 85



On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
to hire Tyler Luethje as a full time Parks Director/Ag Inspector in the Parks Department, as a 
Grade 11, Step 1 at $24.01 per hour, effective June 26, 2017.    

On motion by Connolly, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
hire Stephanie Brockway as a full time Accounting/Licensing Clerk in the Auditor-Treasurer’s 
Office, as a Grade 7, Step 1 at $19.00 per hour, effective June 26, 2017.  

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
to grant regular status to Robert Whipps, full time Assistant County Attorney in the County 
Attorney’s Office, effective May 29, 2017.  Robert has completed the six-month probationary 
period.  

Amy Beatty, Environmental Programs Specialist appeared before the Board with one item for 
consideration and approval.

On motion by Connolly, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
following 2017-2018 Solid Waste License Applications.

Collect and transport solid waste and recyclables in Le Sueur County:
Waste Management of Minnesota – Mankato, MN – 31 Trucks - $1,135.00
West Central Sanitation – Willmar, MN – 3 Trucks - $155.00

Operate a recycling facility in Le Sueur County: 
Waste Management of Minnesota – Mankato, MN - $200.00 

Operate a transfer station in Le Sueur County:
Waste Management of Minnesota – Mankato, MN - $675.00 

Chad Washa appeared before the Board with several items for consideration and approval.

On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
fund the following Le Sueur County Fair Proposed Projects:

Commercial Building Project $4,650
Ticket Booths                          $2,000
Children’s Barnyard Pens        $2,500

On motion by King, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
open the German Jefferson Public Hearing at 10:00 a.m.

There were 2 public comments.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
to close the public hearing.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 8 / 85



On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
following German Jefferson Ordinance:

ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE OF 
SUBSURFACE SEWAGE TREATMENT SYSTEMS WITHIN THE 

GERMAN-JEFFERSON SUBORDINATE SERVICE DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the County established the German-Jefferson Subordinate Service District (the 
District) to address an area with a high density of known and suspected wastewater concerns 
within the County;

WHEREAS, the wastewater concerns within the District have the potential to impact public 
health and water quality;

WHEREAS, the County inspected and inventoried a high percentage of SSTSs within the 
District and confirmed the County’s wastewater concerns within the District;

WHEREAS, the County conducted numerous public meetings to elicit public input from 
residents in the District on various options for addressing wastewater concerns within the 
District;

WHEREAS, the overwhelming consensus from District residents was that continuous 
compliance of SSTSs, through rigorous inspection and enforcement, was the preferred option for 
addressing wastewater concerns within the District;

WHEREAS, the County’s existing SSTS regulation in Section 17 of the Le Sueur County 
Zoning Ordinance (Existing Ordinance) does not provide for an inspection program to ensure 
continuous compliance.

WHEREAS, the County has determined that District residents’ demands for rigorous inspection 
and enforcement processes is appropriate and will properly address wastewater concerns within 
the District;

WHEREAS, a new District-specific ordinance is necessary in order to implement the rigorous 
inspection and enforcement processes demanded by resident of the District, which shall take 
effect after the final compliance deadline in the Existing Ordinance.

NOW THEREFORE, the Le Sueur County Board hereby ordains:

SECTION 1. Purpose. The District was established for the purpose of addressing wastewater 
issues around German and Jefferson Lakes. The purpose of this Ordinance is to establish a 
rigorous compliance program for the inspection and enforcement of established standards for 
wastewater treatment systems within the District to ensure continuous compliance.

SECTION 2. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect on January 1, 2018.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 9 / 85



SECTION 3. Definitions. 

Certificate of Compliance: A document, written after a compliance inspection, from an 
Inspector, certifying that an SSTS is in compliance with the applicable requirements of 
Minnesota Rules, Chapters 7080 to 7083, as amended and the Existing Ordinance at the 
time of the inspection.

Cluster System: An SSTS under some form of common ownership or operation that 
collects wastewater from three or more dwellings or structures and conveys it to a 
treatment and dispersal system located on an acceptable site near the dwellings or 
structures. 
Compliance Inspection: An evaluation, investigation, inspection, or other process for the 
purpose of issuing a certificate of compliance or notice of noncompliance.  

Department: The Le Sueur County Department of Environmental Services.

District: The German-Jefferson Subordinate Service District established by the Le Sueur 
County Board.

Holding Tank: A tank for storage of sewage until it can be transported to a point of 
treatment and dispersal as defined in Minnesota Rules, Chapter 7080.1100, subpart 41, as 
amended.

Inspection Report: A Certificate of Compliance or Notice of Noncompliance, together 
with the Le Sueur County Certification Form, signed and sworn by an Inspector. 

Inspector: An individual qualified to review proposed plans and inspect on-site sewage 
treatment systems and who has been certified and/or issued a license from the Agency.

Jefferson-German Lakes Septic Inventory Project-JGSIP: The voluntary Jefferson-
German Lakes Septic Inventory Project (JGSIP) initiated on March 29, 2011 by Le Sueur 
County within the boundaries of the Jefferson-German Subordinate Service District.

Licensed Business: A business that designs, installs or maintains, repairs, pumps, 
operates, or inspects SSTS. 

MPCA: Minnesota Pollution Control Agency; referred to as “the Agency” throughout 
this Ordinance.

Notice of Noncompliance: A document written and signed by a certified inspector after a 
compliance inspection that gives notice that an SSTS is not in compliance as specified 
under Minnesota Rules 7080.1500, as amended.

Subsurface Sewage Treatment System (SSTS): Either an individual subsurface sewage 
treatment system (ISTS) or a midsized subsurface sewage treatment system (MSTS) as 
defined in Chapters 7080 and 7081, as amended.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 10 / 85



Subsurface Sewage Treatment System, Individual (ISTS): A subsurface sewage 
treatment systems as defined in Minnesota Rules, Chapter 7080.1100, subpart 41, as 
amended.
 
Subsurface Sewage Treatment System, Midsized (MSTS): A subsurface sewage 
treatment systems as defined in Minnesota Rules, Chapter 7081.0020, subpart 4, as 
amended.

Type I System:  A subsurface sewage treatment system as defined in Minnesota Rules, 
Chapter 7080.2200; a Type I System utilizes trenches and seepage beds, mounds, at-
grade systems, or gray water systems that meet or exceed the design and performance 
requirements of Minnesota Rules Chapter 7080, as amended.

SECTION 4. Application. The County has an existing SSTS ordinance (Section 17) that 
conforms to Minn. Rule Chapter 7082 and applies to all properties.  All provisions of the 
Existing Ordinance, to the extent they are not modified by this ordinance, shall remain in full 
force and effect within the District.  This Ordinance is in addition to the minimum requirements 
of the existing ordinance and shall apply only to properties within the District.

SECTION 5. Continuous Compliance. A valid certificate of compliance is required at all times. 
It is unlawful for any person to maintain, occupy, or use any structure intended for habitation 
without a valid certificate of compliance or a permit for the repair or replacement of a non-
compliant SSTS.

SECTION 6. Inspector Requirements. All Compliance Inspections must be performed by an 
Inspector, as defined in 7082.0700.  No Inspector or Licensed Business who previously 
designed, installed, inspected, or performed any maintenance on the SSTS may submit an 
Inspection Report for that SSTS for purposes of this ordinance until the SSTS has been 
independently inspected. 

SECTION 7. Certificate of Compliance. Certificates of Compliance for a new SSTS shall be 
valid for 5 years. Certificates of Compliance for an existing SSTS shall be valid for 3 years 
unless evidence of noncompliance is found by the Department.
 
SECTION 8. SSTS Compliance. All compliant SSTSs shall meet the standards in the Existing 
Ordinance as it may be amended, specifically three feet of vertical separation and tank integrity 
verification, as well as all requirements under Minnesota Rules Chapter 7080 for an ISTS and 
Chapter 7081 for an MSTS. 

SECTION 9.  Cluster System Compliance. Every component a Cluster System must be 
compliant prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Compliance. In addition to the standards for an 
ISTS or MSTS, Cluster Systems shall meet the following standards:

a. Written agreement between all owners of the parcels served by the Cluster System to 
allow system-wide inspection and maintenance on all parcels served by the Cluster 
System.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 11 / 85



b. Documentation of all service performed in the past three years in accordance with the 
Management Plan and Minnesota Rule Chapter 7082.0600 for ISTS or all service 
performed in the past three years in accordance with the Operation and Maintenance Plan 
and Minnesota Rule Chapter 7080.2450 and Chapter 7081.0290 for an MSTS must be 
submitted to the Department prior to the issuance of a new Certificate of Compliance.

SECTION 10. Holding Tank Compliance. All compliant Holding Tanks shall meet the standards 
in the Existing Ordinance as it may be amended. After December 31, 2017, new Holding Tanks 
shall only be allowed for seasonal residences or Lots of Record where a Type I system cannot be 
installed and a Cluster System is not available for connection. Existing, compliant Holding 
Tanks shall be allowed to remain. All compliant Holding Tanks shall meet the following 
standards:

a. A copy of a current, valid monitoring and disposal contract must on file with the 
Department at all times.

b. Documentation of all service performed in the past three years in accordance with a 
monitoring and disposal contract must be submitted to the Department prior to the 
issuance of a new Certificate of Compliance.

c. Where available, a designated soil treatment area must be preserved through a written 
declaration recorded on the property when new seasonal residences are constructed or 
when parcels with existing Holding Tanks request a land use approval or property 
transfer.

SECTION 11.  Required Installation of Type I System.  Compliant Holding Tanks with available 
soil treatment areas, but lacking a Type I System, must install a Type I System within one (1) 
year of the following events:

a. Transfer of the property, or
b. Issuance of a land use permit or zoning permit approval.

All new SSTSs installed after the effective date of this Ordinance shall include a Type I System 
if an adequate soil treatment area is available.

SECTION 12. Effect of New Regulations. No system shall be “grandfathered” based on new 
County or state regulations and standards. All existing systems must be upgraded, repaired, or 
replaced in order to meet all performance and design standards for SSTS with the District prior 
to the issuance of a Certificate of Compliance.

SECTION 13. Compliance Period. 
a. An SSTS that is determined not to be protective of groundwater, in accordance with 

Minnesota Rules, Chapter 7080.1500, Subp.4.B or otherwise fail to meet any standard of 
this ordinance and Minnesota Rules Chapter 7080 for an ISTS or Chapter 7081 for an 
MSTS, shall be upgraded, repaired, replaced, or abandoned by the owner in accordance 
with the provisions of this Section within one (1) year of receipt of a Notice of 
Noncompliance. 

b. An SSTS that is determined to be an imminent threat to public health or safety, in 
accordance with Minnesota Rules, Chapter 7080.1500, Subp.4A, shall be upgraded, 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 12 / 85



repaired, replaced, or abandoned by the owner in accordance with the provisions of this 
Section within ten (10) months of receipt of a Notice of Noncompliance.

c. All operational deficiencies must be corrected immediately.

SECTION 14. Variances.    No variances shall be granted from this Ordinance.

SECTION 15. Inspection Program. The Department shall send notice of the impending 
expiration of a Certificate of Compliance at least 120 days before expiration. Notice shall also be 
provided when a change in use of the property is proposed. 

SECTION 16. Administrative Search Warrant. The County reserves the right to seek an 
administrative search warrant to perform a Compliance Inspection of any property within the 
District for which a valid Certificate of Compliance does not exist.

SECTION 17. Penalties. Any property owner who fails to upgrade, repair, or replace a non-
compliant SSTS but continues to maintain, occupy, or use any structure for habitation without a 
valid certificate of compliance shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. Any person or entity who 
violates any provision of this Ordinance or makes any false statement in any document required 
to be submitted under this Ordinance shall be guilty of a misdemeanor.

SECTION 18. Funding. All activities resulting from this Ordinance shall be funded through the 
District in accordance with Minnesota Statute Chapter 375B  and the resolution establishing the 
District.

SECTION 19. Severability. In the event any provision or part of this Ordinance is determined to 
be void or unenforceable by a Court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Ordinance 
shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 20. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be effective January 1, 2018. 

Darrell Pettis, County Administrator / Engineer appeared before the Board with several items for 
discussion and approval.

On motion by Connolly, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
Highway 2016 Annual Report.

On motion by King, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved and 
authorized the Board Chair and County Administrator to sign a County Ditch 54 Findings and 
Order Accepting Petition and Directing Appointment of Engineer. 

On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved a 
sealcoat contract with ASTECH in the amount of $1,228,503.49.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 13 / 85



On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
a paving contract with Wm. Mueller & Sons in the amount of $3,739,163.21.

Commissioner Committee Reports:

Commissioner Rohlfing attended a 1W1P and a MRCI meeting.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the following 
claims were approved for payment:

Warrant # Vendor Name Amount

45502 Baker, Tilly, Virchow & Krause LLP $    4,074.00
45504 Beehive Industries $    3,600.00
45510 Carney Construction $  19,766.63
45514 Contech Engineered Solutions LLC $    3,286.92
45519 Election Systems & Software Inc. $  10,774.00
45520 Empire Pipe Services $    2,920.00
45525 Genesis $  21,554.53
45529 Guardian Fleet Safety LLC $    9,108.55
45531 Hartmann Well Co LLP $    4,115.00
45536 Independent Emergency Services $    6,645.21
45558 MN Dept of Transportation $  23,941.16
45583 S.E.H. Inc. $  42,062.25
45584 Selly Excavating Inc. $  14,829.30
45586 S.M.C. Co. Inc. $  10,461.50
45593 Suel Printing Co. $    3,469.00
45594 Summit $    8,487.47
45599 Traxler Construction Inc. $  16,105.95
45608 Waterford Oil Co. Inc. $  12,195.00
45611 Widseth Smith Nolting & Assoc Inc $    3,175.00
45613 Ziegler Inc $    3,602.37
45614 Zimmerman Tiling & Excavating LLC $  51,505.00

98   Claims paid less than $2,000.00: $  43,108.04 
21   Claims paid more than $2,000.00: $275,678.84
119 Total all claims paid: $318,786.88

On motion by Connolly, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board adjourned 
until Tuesday, June 20, 2017 at 9:00 a.m.

ATTEST: _____________________________    _______________________________
          Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 14 / 85



Summary Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting, June 6, 2017
●This is only a summary publication per MN Statutes 375.12 and 331A.01 sub. 10.  The complete 
minutes are on file in the Le Sueur County Administrator’s Office at 88 S Park Ave. Le Center, MN and 
are available at www.co.le-sueur.mn.us.
●Approved the agenda. (Connolly-Gliszinski)
●Approved the consent agenda: May 23, 2017 County Board Minutes and Summary Minutes and May 
2017 Transfers: #1654 Transfer 3,966.00 from Human Services to Revenue(A87 quarter ending 3-31-17), 
#1655 Transfer  3,921.00 from Agency to Revenue (May Landshark) and #1656 Transfer 634.00 from 
Road & Bridge to Ditch (Ditch #23 Lien) (King-Gliszinski)
●Approved to open the 2017 – 2021 Capital Improvement Plan Public Hearing at 9:00 a.m. (Gliszinski-
Connolly)
●Approved to close the 2017 – 2021 Capital Improvement Hearing. (King-Connolly)
●Approved a Resolution Relating to Approval of a Capital Improvement Plan and Issuance of General 
Obligation Capital Improvement Plan Bonds, Series 2017A. (Gliszinski-Connolly)
●Approved a Resolution Providing for the Sale of $2,565,000 General Obligation CIP Bonds, Series 
2017A. (King-Gliszinski)
●Approved a Resolution Providing for the Sale of $7,325,000 General Obligation Jail Bonds, Series 
2017B. (Connolly-King)
●Approved a Resolution Authorizing the County to Enter into a Credit Enhancement Program Agreement 
with the Minnesota Public Facilities Authority. (Gliszinski-King)
●Approved Human Services claims: Financial $ 67,375.98 and Soc Services $ 89,036.74 (King-
Gliszinski)
●Approved a Regional Administrative Agency Cooperative Agreement, Fraud Investigation Program. 
(King-Connolly)
●Approved a County issued credit card for Richard Droog in the Sheriff’s Office. (Gliszinski-King)
●Approved a repurchase application for Theresa Johnson for parcel #04.780.0160. (Connolly-Gliszinski)
●The Board directed the Ditch Inspector to get at least two repair quotes for all ditch repair requests over 
$15,000 and quotes over $25,000 will require Board approval. (King-Gliszinski)
●Approved the Public Employees Retirement Association Policy Officer Declaration for Richard Droog. 
(Gliszinski-Connolly)
●Approved to hire Caitlin Meyer as a full time Case Aide in Human Services. (King-Gliszinski)  
●Approved to hire Tyler Luethje as a full time Parks Director/Ag Inspector in the Parks Department. 
(Gliszinski-Connolly)    
●Approved to hire Stephanie Brockway as a full time Accounting/Licensing Clerk in the Auditor-
Treasurer’s Office. (Connolly-King) 
●Approved regular status to Robert Whipps in the County Attorney’s Office. (Gliszinski-Connolly)  
●Approved 2017-2018 Solid Waste License Applications. (Connolly-King)
●Approved to fund the Le Sueur County Fair Commercial Building Project, Ticket Booths and Children’s 
Barnyard Pens. (King-Gliszinski)
●Approved to open a German Jefferson Public Hearing at 10:00 a.m. (King-Connolly)
●Approved to close the public hearing. (Gliszinski-Connolly)
●Approved the Ordinance Providing For The Continuous Compliance Of Subsurface Sewage Treatment 
Systems Within The German-Jefferson Subordinate Service District. (King-Gliszinski)
●Approved the Highway 2016 Annual Report. (Connolly-King)
●Approved a County Ditch 54 Findings and Order Accepting Petition and Directing Appointment of 
Engineer. (King-Connolly) 
●Approved a sealcoat contract with ASTECH in the amount of $1,228,503.49 (King-Gliszinski)
●Approved a paving contract with Wm. Mueller & Sons in the amount of $3,739,163.21 (Gliszinski-
Connolly)
●The following claims were approved for payment: (Gliszinski-Connolly)
Warrant # Vendor Name Amount

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 15 / 85

http://www.co.le-sueur.mn.us/


45502 Baker, Tilly, Virchow & Krause LLP $    4,074.00
45504 Beehive Industries $    3,600.00
45510 Carney Construction $  19,766.63
45514 Contech Engineered Solutions LLC $    3,286.92
45519 Election Systems & Software Inc. $  10,774.00
45520 Empire Pipe Services $    2,920.00
45525 Genesis $  21,554.53
45529 Guardian Fleet Safety LLC $    9,108.55
45531 Hartmann Well Co LLP $    4,115.00
45536 Independent Emergency Services $    6,645.21
45558 MN Dept of Transportation $  23,941.16
45583 S.E.H. Inc. $  42,062.25
45584 Selly Excavating Inc. $  14,829.30
45586 S.M.C. Co. Inc. $  10,461.50
45593 Suel Printing Co. $    3,469.00
45594 Summit $    8,487.47
45599 Traxler Construction Inc. $  16,105.95
45608 Waterford Oil Co. Inc. $  12,195.00
45611 Widseth Smith Nolting & Assoc Inc $    3,175.00
45613 Ziegler Inc $    3,602.37
45614 Zimmerman Tiling & Excavating LLC $  51,505.00
98   Claims paid less than $2,000.00:                                              $  43,108.04 
21   Claims paid more than $2,000.00:                                            $275,678.84
119 Total all claims paid:                                                                 $318,786.88
●Adjourned until Tuesday, June 20, 2017 at 9:00 a.m. (Connolly-King)
ATTEST: Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 16 / 85



Board of Equalization Minutes
Wednesday, June 14, 2017

The Le Sueur County Board of Equalization met in special session on Wednesday, June 14th 
at 6:30 p.m. in the Courthouse at Le Center, Minnesota.  Those members present were:  David 
Gliszinski, Joe Connolly, John King, Lance Wetzel, Steve Rohlfing, and Connie Kopet. Also 
present were Shayne Bender and Carol Blaschko. Darrell Pettis and Pam Simonette were 
excused.

Carol Blaschko, Finance Director called the 2017 Board of Equalization to order and issued 
the oath to the Equalization Board.

Carol Blaschko then called for nominations for Chairman. Commissioner Rohlfing nominated 
King for Chairman, seconded by Wetzel and approved. 

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, nominations 
ceased and King was elected Chairman of the 2017 Board of Equalization. 

Commissioner King nominated Gliszinski for Vice Chairman, seconded by Wetzel and 
approved.  

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, nominations 
ceased and Gliszinski was elected Vice Chair of the 2017 Board of Equalization.

Shayne Bender, County Assessor gave an overview of the process and the work that has been 
done in his office to prepare for the 2017 Board of Equalization.  After this discussion, the 
Chair called for presentations by those in attendance.

The following individuals appeared before the Board: none

Having no persons to come before the Board, on motion by Wetzel, seconded by Gliszinski 
and unanimously approved, the Board accepted the recommendations of the County Assessor 
and ordered the following 2017 parcel assessment changes and adjourned at 7:02 p.m.

  Valuation Appeals Classification Appeals Reason

  Assessor Board Change    

Property Owner Parcel # Total Total (+/-) Assessor Board Explanation 

  EMV EMV
in EMV 

($) Class Class Of Change

Matthew Kortuem 05.500.0100 165,900 138,500 -27,400   Interior Inspection

Karen Fox 04.026.0200 153,400 125,000 -28,400   Interior Inspection

Ann Wright 04.620.0220 223,200 206,300 -16,900   Interior Inspection

Brian Seemann 14.019.5100 453,500 400,400 -53,100   Interior Inspection

Paul Wade 05.740.0060 35,000 25,000 -10,000   Unbuildable Per P&Z Letter

SC Prospect LLC 05.118.7500    
RVL/Ex.

Wet.
Ag/RVL/Ex

.Wet. Active Pasture

Joesph Archer 05.013.7800 153,900 120,800 -33,100   Interior Inspection
William Tramel 

Estate 09.032.3000 192,300 166,200 -26,100   Interior Inspection

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 17 / 85



Ruth Novak 24.500.0040 108,500 80,000 -54,600   Unbuildable Per City

Gerald Flowers 01.008.5000 514,500 511,700 -2,800   Acreage Change Per Survey

Daniel Krentz 12.004.2500 214,700 164,800 -49,900   Interior Inspection

Scott Simon 22.642.0110 96,600 82,100 -14,500   Interior Inspection

Donald Kewatt 06.006.5200 78,000 65,200 -12,800   
M.H. Personnal Property 
Now

Joseph Holmbo 15.500.2326 192,900 190,100 -2,800   Interior Inspection
City of 

Montgomery 22.660.0230 67,900 9,400 -61,300   Removed House & Garage

Delores Meyer 24.663.0190 86,300 70,600 -15,700   Interior Inspection

Henry Macho 11.024.0500 7,500 5,000 -2,500   Sharon Twp. Recommended

David Arnold 16.415.0200 537,100 523,400 -13,700   Reviewed with Owner

Kenneth Ahntholz 21.800.1470 80,400 44,700 -35,700   Interior Inspection

Armar Corp. 20.630.0060 324,200 316,500 -7,700   Interior Inspection

Armar Corp. 20.630.0055 15,500 13,000 -2,500   Reviewed with Owner
Novak Properties 

LLC 22.850.0010 477,500 444,300 -33,200   Interior Inspection

Jeromy Eotvos 22.550.0220 168,800 116,800 -52,000   Interior Inspection

Michael Hoey 11.027.2500 243,600 183,400 -60,200   Interior Inspection

ATTEST: _____________________________    _______________________________
      Le Sueur County Finance Director Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 18 / 85



Board of Equalization Summary Minutes
Wednesday, June 14, 2017

●This is only a summary publication per MN Statutes 375.12 and 331A.01 sub. 10.  The complete 
minutes are on file in the Le Sueur County Administrator’s Office at 88 S Park Ave. Le Center, MN and 
are available at www.co.le-sueur.mn.us. 
●King was nominated for Chairman. (Rohlfing-Wetzel) 
●King was elected Chairman of the 2017 Board of Equalization. (Gliszinski-Connolly) 
●Gliszinski was nominated for Vice Chairman. (King-Wetzel)
●Gliszinski was elected Vice Chair of the 2017 Board of Equalization. (Rohlfing-Connolly)
●With no individuals appearing before the Board, the Board accepted the recommendations of the County 
Assessor and ordered the following 2017 parcel assessment changes and adjourned at 7:02 p.m. (Wetzel-
Gliszinski) 

  Valuation Appeals Classification Appeals Reason

  Assessor Board Change    

Property Owner Parcel # Total Total (+/-) Assessor Board Explanation 

  EMV EMV
in EMV 

($) Class Class Of Change

Matthew Kortuem 05.500.0100 165,900 138,500 -27,400   Interior Inspection

Karen Fox 04.026.0200 153,400 125,000 -28,400   Interior Inspection

Ann Wright 04.620.0220 223,200 206,300 -16,900   Interior Inspection

Brian Seemann 14.019.5100 453,500 400,400 -53,100   Interior Inspection

Paul Wade 05.740.0060 35,000 25,000 -10,000   Unbuildable Per P&Z Letter

SC Prospect LLC 05.118.7500    
RVL/Ex.

Wet.
Ag/RVL/Ex

.Wet. Active Pasture

Joesph Archer 05.013.7800 153,900 120,800 -33,100   Interior Inspection
William Tramel 

Estate 09.032.3000 192,300 166,200 -26,100   Interior Inspection

Ruth Novak 24.500.0040 108,500 80,000 -54,600   Unbuildable Per City

Gerald Flowers 01.008.5000 514,500 511,700 -2,800   Acreage Change Per Survey

Daniel Krentz 12.004.2500 214,700 164,800 -49,900   Interior Inspection

Scott Simon 22.642.0110 96,600 82,100 -14,500   Interior Inspection

Donald Kewatt 06.006.5200 78,000 65,200 -12,800   
M.H. Personnal Property 
Now

Joseph Holmbo 15.500.2326 192,900 190,100 -2,800   Interior Inspection
City of 

Montgomery 22.660.0230 67,900 9,400 -61,300   Removed House & Garage

Delores Meyer 24.663.0190 86,300 70,600 -15,700   Interior Inspection

Henry Macho 11.024.0500 7,500 5,000 -2,500   Sharon Twp. Recommended

David Arnold 16.415.0200 537,100 523,400 -13,700   Reviewed with Owner

Kenneth Ahntholz 21.800.1470 80,400 44,700 -35,700   Interior Inspection

Armar Corp. 20.630.0060 324,200 316,500 -7,700   Interior Inspection

Armar Corp. 20.630.0055 15,500 13,000 -2,500   Reviewed with Owner
Novak Properties 

LLC 22.850.0010 477,500 444,300 -33,200   Interior Inspection

Jeromy Eotvos 22.550.0220 168,800 116,800 -52,000   Interior Inspection

Michael Hoey 11.027.2500 243,600 183,400 -60,200   Interior Inspection

ATTEST: Le Sueur County Finance Director Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 19 / 85

http://www.co.le-sueur.mn.us/


Tobacco License Renewals 

Vet’s Super America

Genesis Cenex

Valley Lanes   (The Bar)

Casey’s General Store -2570

Casey’s General Store-2589

Casey’s General Store-2401

Holiday Stationstore Inc- 233

Phil Mart

Davis Marketplace

Radermacher Foods of LeSueur

Radermacher Foods of LeCenter

LeCenter Municipal Liquor Store

Scoop’s Liquor

Woods Grill and Bar

Denny’s Bar, Inc

The Liquor Hole, Inc

The Pit Stop

J& L Bottles, Inc. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 20 / 85



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, June 20, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 2

9:05 a.m. Claims (5 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 21 / 85



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, June 20, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 3

9:10 a.m. Human Services (35 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 22 / 85



Human Services Board Agenda
June 20, 2017 @ 9:15 a.m.

100- INFORMATION/PRESENTATIONS:

 101 – Introduction of New Employee
o 101.1 – Caitlin Meyer – Case Aide (Child Services)

 102 –  General Updates and Highlights
 103 –  Legislative Wrap Up/Impact

200- CHARTS/GRAPHS:

 210- Finance Graphs/Report;
 220- Income Maintenance/Child Support Graphs;                                 
 230- Family Services Graphs-
                    231- Social Services Team 

       232- Child Services Team
                   232.1- Out Of Home Placement Report
                   232.2- In-Home Family Therapy Report;
        233- Behavioral Health Team

300- BOARD APPROVAL ITEMS:

310 –  Commissioner’s Warrants                                             

Department of Human Services
88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE          LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057-1646

507-357-2251          FAX 507-357-6122

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 23 / 85



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, June 20, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 4

9:45 a.m. Pam Simonette, Auditor - Treasurer (30 min)

Ditch Liens - CD #21, 40, 57 & 70

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 24 / 85



Ditch Liens

820% lien for Le Sueur County Ditch #21 in the amount of $10,425.48 to be spread over three years 
beginning with taxes payable in 2018. The interest rate is 4% and the lien will be filed December 15, 
2017.

243% lien for Le Sueur County Ditch #40 in the amount of $101,493.83 to be spread over ten years 
beginning with taxes payable in 2018. The interest rate is 4% and the lien will be filed December 15, 
2017.

120% lien for Le Sueur County Ditch #57 in the amount of $13,956.00 to be spread over three years 
beginning with taxes payable in 2018. The interest rate is 4% and the lien will be filed December 15, 
2017.

132% lien for Le Sueur County Ditch #70 in the amount of $64,734.72 to be spread over eight years 
beginning with taxes payable in 2018. The interest rate is 4% and the lien will be filed December 15, 
2017.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 25 / 85



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, June 20, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 5

10:15 a.m. Southern Minnesota Initiative Foundation (15 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 26 / 85



 

May 2017 
 
 
Darrell Pettis 
Le Sueur County 
Courthouse 
88 Park Ave S 
Le Center, MN  56057-1600 
 
Dear Mr. Pettis and County Board; 
 
The McKnight Foundation created Southern Minnesota Initiative Foundation (SMIF) 30 years ago 
to make a difference. To fulfill this responsibility we continue to work every day to keep our 
communities vibrant and prosperous. Whether it’s partnering on a loan to support a fledgling 
business endeavor, supporting a community group about to launch a community foundation, 
preparing our youngest residents through literary grants, or providing training for childcare 
providers, we know with your support we will have a greater impact. 
 
I know you see the value in SMIF’s work in Le Sueur County.  Recently, we supported Chabelitas 
Yummy Foods and Fruits LLC with financial and technical assistance to grow their business. With 
our support, they are expanding into hot foods and catering options in the Le Sueur area! This is 
just one of the many ways SMIF has contributed to your community. Please see the enclosed 
factsheet for more examples. 
 
Together, we are making a difference right here at home. But there is still a lot of work that needs 
to be done.  
 
Your last gift of $3,000 on May 9, 2016 impacted members of your community.  Please consider 
continued support in 2018 at the same level to impact this essential work. With your help we will 
make southern Minnesota a vibrant and prosperous place to live.  
 
Will you join us?  
 
 
 
Tim Penny 
President & CEO 
 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 27 / 85



$1

525 Florence Avenue  l  PO Box 695  l  Owatonna, MN  55060  l  507.455.3215  l  www.smifoundation.org

$13=For every donation of 
from  Le Sueur County

is invested back into 
Le Sueur County 
communities.*

*Includes grants, loans & programming

Le Sueur County 
Investments

20 LOANS
$1.4 million to Le Sueur County entrepreneurs

115 GRANTS
$553,000 to support community initiatives

$5 million invested annually to the 20 counties of 
south central and southeastern Minnesota

invested by SMIF in Le Sueur County 
through grants, loans, and programming for 
stronger kids, businesses and communities

Since 1986, Southern Minnesota Initiative 
Foundation has leveraged local investments & 

partnerships to create a stronger Le Sueur County:

$3.3 million
$254,000  in local donations to SMIF 

We envision southern Minnesota as a prosperous and growing region with vibrant communities, innovative and successful 
economies, and engaged and valued citizens. To achieve this vision, Southern Minnesota Initiative Foundation, a regional 
development and philanthropic organization, fosters economic and community vitality in 20 counties of southern Minnesota 
through a culture of collaboration and partnership. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 28 / 85



Loans & Equity Investments  Supporting local entrepreneurs & creating jobs

Grants  Investments in economic development, early childhood and community vitality

Farmhouse Market LLC, New Prague Organic, locally-sourced 24/7 food market

Whitewater Creek Grain & Feed Incorporated, Waterville Buying, storage, feed sales, & marketing services to farm producers

Odenthal Meats, New Prague Local meat market

Herrmann Law Office PLLC, New Prague General practice law firm 

Rolco Incorporated, Kasota Plastic injection molding

City of Elysian  16 gallons of paint award for Elysian City Park mural & buildings

Tri-City United Public Schools, Montgomery  Hundreds of books awarded through multiple literacy grants

Making a Difference  
Helping communities increase early childhood development opportunities

New Prague is SMIF’s newest Early Childhood 
Initiative (ECI) community. ECIs pull together a 
cross-sector of community leaders to discuss 
opportunities to improve early childhood offerings. 
The group is implementing four projects: winter 
open gym, a website listing all early childhood 
resources in New Prague, a child care support 
group with trainings and monthly meetings for 
child care providers, and large group community 
presentations to talk about positive discipline.

New Prague Chamber of Commerce 35 gallons of paint awarded for mural

New Prague Area Schools Pre-K to Grade 3 Alignment grant

Waterville-Elysian-Morristown Public Schools Support for WEM new parent needs & services survey

AmeriCorps LEAP (Learning Early Achieves Potential) Members helping with social emotional skill development

Affiliate Funds  Increasing rural philanthropy 

Community Collaborations  Bringing communities together for change

Elysian Community Foundation

Le Sueur Community Wellness Collaborative

Le Sueur Community Foundation 

New Prague Early Childhood Initiative (Started in 2015)

Tri-City United  Early Childhood Initiative (Started in 2008)

LCS Precision Molding, Waterville Plastic injection molding specializing in window, door, appliance, 
electronics, and automotive industry applications

New Prague Area Community Foundation 

Sakatah Area Foundation

Waterville Friends of the Library

Chabelita’s Yummy Foods & Fruits, Le Sueur Mexican restaurant

30th Community Collaboration Grant, New Prague ECI Social emotional book bag project

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 29 / 85



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, June 20, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 6

10:30 a.m. Nik Kadel, Ditch Inspector (20 min)

RE: County Ditch 48

RE: Buffer Resolution

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 30 / 85



RESOLUTION

Affirming Le Sueur County’s jurisdiction to carry out the compliance 
provisions of Minnesota Statutes 103B.101, subdivision 12a and 103F.48 

WHEREAS, during the 2015 First Special Session, the 89th Legislature 
adopted Chapter 4, creating the water quality buffer initiative; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 4 authorizes a county to assume jurisdiction over the 
compliance provisions of the water quality buffer initiative; and

WHEREAS, improved water quality is a statewide goal, but is best 
administered by local policymakers, whose familiarity with their home 
communities will ensure a cooperative and efficient implementation of the 
initiative; now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED, Le Sueur County affirms its jurisdiction to carry out 
the compliance provisions of Minnesota Statutes 103B.101, subdivision 12a and 
103F.48; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, county staff will draft a rule, ordinance, 
or official controls, to be approved by the Le Sueur Board of County 
Commissioners, to carry out the compliance provisions of Minnesota Statutes 
103B.101, subdivision 12a and 103F.48. 

ATTEST:

Steve Rohlfing, Chairman, Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners

Darrell Pettis, Le Sueur County Administrator

Date

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 31 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 32 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 33 / 85



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, June 20, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 7

10:50 a.m. Ann Traxler (5 min)

RE: Trailer

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 34 / 85



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, June 20, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 8

10:55 a.m. Nancy Domonoske (5 min)

RE: Introduce "New" Extension Staff Casandra Story, 4H PC and Kristi Frederick, 4H summer intern

Staff Contact: Nancy Domonoske

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 35 / 85



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, June 20, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 9

11:00 a.m. Brett Mason, Sheriff (5 min)

RE: Snowmobile

RE: Treadmill

RE: Out of State Travel Request

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 36 / 85



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, June 20, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 10

11:05 a.m. Darrell Pettis, County Administrator/Engineer

RE: HR Items

RE: CPA Projections

RE: JD 5 - Redetermination discussion

RE: CD 48 - Record Correction

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 37 / 85



On June 6, the Board approved to hire Caitlin Meyer as a full time Case Aide in Human 
Services, as a Grade 4, Step 1 at $15.97 per hour.  We extended the offer to hire at a Step 2.  

Recommendation to hire Caitlin Meyer as a full time Case Aide in Human Services, as a 
Grade 4, Step 2 at $16.54 per hour, effective June 12, 2017.   

Recommendation to accept the resignation request from Miranda Rosa, part time Drug Court 
Coordinator in the Drug Court Office, effective July 10, 2017.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 38 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 39 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 40 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 41 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 42 / 85



[15741-0035/2696825/1]
1 of 2

STATE OF MINNESOTA
LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, DRAINAGE AUTHORITY FOR LE SUEUR 

COUNTY DITCH 48

FINDINGS AND ORDER DIRECTING PROCEEDINGS TO REESTABLISH AND CORRECT DRAINAGE 
SYSTEM RECORD FOR LE SUEUR COUNTY DITCH 48 (Statutes §103E.101, subd. 4a)

Commissioner __________ offered the following Resolution and moved its adoption, seconded 
by Commissioner _________:

FINDINGS

1. The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners is the Drainage Authority for Le Sueur County 
Ditch (CD) 48.

2. After thorough investigation of the drainage system record, the Drainage Authority finds 
that the records establishing the alignment, profile, and right-of-way of CD 48 are 
incomplete.

3. Statutes Section 103E.101, subd. 4a allows the Drainage Authority to initiate proceedings to 
reestablish records defining the alignment; cross-section; profile; hydraulic structure 
locations, materials, dimensions, and elevations; or right-of-way of a drainage system as 
originally constructed or subsequently improved.

Therefore, the Drainage Authority makes the following:

ORDER

A. The Drainage Authority shall follow the procedures of Statutes Section 103E.101, subd. 4a 
to reestablish and correct the drainage system record for CD 48 to reflect the functional 
alignment, dimension, grade and right-of-way of the system.

B. The Drainage Authority appoints the engineering firm of ISG and Chuck Brandel, P.E., to 
investigate and report findings defining the alignment; cross-section; profile; hydraulic 
structure locations, materials, dimensions, elevations; and right-of-way of the drainage 
system. 

C. Drainage Authority staff, upon completion of the engineer’s investigation, shall set a date, 
time and location for an informational meeting on the reestablished and corrected drainage 
system records.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 43 / 85



[15741-0035/2696825/1]
2 of 2

D. Drainage Authority staff, upon completion of the informational meeting, shall set a date, 
time and location for a hearing on the reestablished and corrected drainage system records.

E. Drainage Authority staff shall give notice of the hearing by mail to the commissioner of 
natural resources, the executive director of the Board of Water and Soil Resources, and all 
property owners benefited or damaged by the drainage system and shall give additional 
notice either in a newspaper of general circulation in the drainage system area or by 
publication on Drainage Authority’s website and in all other ways as required by Board 
policy. 

The question was on the adoption of the Resolution, and after discussion, the motion passed 
and the Findings and Order were adopted by a vote of __ yes and __ no. 

Dated this 20th day of June 2017.

LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, 
SEATED AS DRAINAGE AUTHORITY UNDER 
STATUTES CHAPTER 103E FOR LE SUEUR COUNTY 
DITCH 48

By____________________________________
Chairman, Board of Commissioners

*   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *

I, Pam Simonette, Le Sueur County Auditor-Treasurer, do hereby certify that I have compared 
the above resolution with the original thereof as the same appears of record and on file with 
the County and find the same to be a true and correct transcript thereof.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this 20th day of June, 2017.

______________________________
Pam Simonette, Auditor-Treasurer

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 44 / 85



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, June 20, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 11

Commissioner Committee Reports

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 45 / 85



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, June 20, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 12

Future Meetings

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 46 / 85



Future Meetings
June - August 2017 

June 20, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.
*ATV – Golf Cart Workshop

June 27, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.
*Wheelage and Sales Tax Workshop
*Turnbacks Workshop
*BKV / Justice Center Workshop

July 4, 2017 Independence Day – Offices Closed
No Board Meeting

July 11, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

July 13, 2017 P&Z Meeting, 7:00 p.m. at Environmental Services 

July 18, 2017 Board Meeting. 9:00 a.m.
*CHB Meeting, 1:00 p.m. in Waterville

July 20, 2017 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m. at Environmental Services 

July 25, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

August 1, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

August 8, 2017 No Board Meeting

August 10, 2017 P&Z Meeting, 7:00 p.m. at Environmental Services 

August 15, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

August 17, 2017 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m. at Environmental Services 

August 22, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

August 29, 2017 No Board Meeting

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 47 / 85



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, June 20, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 13

ATV-GOLF CART WORKSHOP

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 48 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 49 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 50 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 51 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 52 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 53 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 54 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 55 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 56 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 57 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 58 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 59 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 60 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 61 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 62 / 85



  

 
 
 

Washington County 
 Ordinance No. 168 

 

for the 
Management of All Terrain Vehicles 

in 
Washington County Rights of Way 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         Ordinance No.  168 
         Effective: January 1, 2004

 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 63 / 85



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
WASHINGTON COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY ORDINANCE  

FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF ALL TERRAIN VEHICLES IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 
 
 
SECTION           PAGE 
 
Sec. 1.01. Findings, Purpose, and Intent.................................................................................... 1 
Sec. 1.02. Election to Manage the Public Right of Way ............................................................. 1 
Sec. 1.03. Definitions   ............................................................................................................... 2 
Sec. 1.04. Prohibitions .............................................................................................................. 2 
Sec. 1.05  Violation……………………………………………………………………………………….2 
Sec. 1.06 General Provisions……………………………………………………………………………2 
 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 64 / 85



1 

 
 

 WASHINGTON COUNTY ORDINANCE 
FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF ALL TERRAIN VEHICLES IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY OF ROADS 

UNDER THE COUNTY’S JURISDICTION 
 
 

An ordinance to administer and regulate use of all terrain vehicles in the public right-of-way in the public 
interest, pursuant to the powers granted under Minnesota Statutes 84.92 through 84.928. 
 
 
Sec. 1.01.  Findings, Purpose, and Intent. 
 
To provide for health, safety and welfare of its citizens, and to ensure the integrity of its roads and streets and 
the appropriate use of the rights of way, the County strives to keep its public right of way in a state of good 
repair. 
 
Accordingly, the County hereby enacts this ordinance relating to the use of its public right of way by all terrain 
vehicles.   
 
This ordinance shall be interpreted consistently with Minnesota Statutes Sections 84.82 through 84.928 and the other 
laws governing applicable rights of the County and users of the right of way. This ordinance shall not be interpreted to 
limit the regulatory and police powers of the County to adopt and enforce general ordinances necessary to protect the 
health, safety, and welfare of the public. 
 
 
Sec. 1.03.  Definitions. 
 
The following definitions apply in this ordinance.  Defined terms remain defined terms whether or not 
capitalized. 
 

1. “ATV” or “All Terrain Vehicle” shall mean a motorized flotation-tired vehicle of not less than three, but 
not more than six, low-pressure tires that is limited in engine displacement to less than 800 cubic 
centimeters and total dry weight less than 900 pounds. 

 
2. "County" means the County of Washington, Minnesota.   
3. “Public Road Right of Way” shall have the meaning given to it by Minnesota Statute 84.92, Subdivision 

6a. 
 

4. “County Public Road Right of Way” shall be public road right of way for which Washington County is the 
road authority, as defined in Minnesota Statute 160.02, Subdivision 25. 
 
 

Sec. 1.04.  Prohibitions. 
 

1. Except as provided for in Minnesota Statute 84.928, Subdivision 1 (e) and in Sections 1.04.2, 1.04.3, 
and 1.04.4 of this ordinance, it shall be unlawful for any person to operate an All Terrain Vehicle in any 
County Public Road Right of Way.   

 
2. This ordinance shall not apply to any agent or employee of any road authority, law enforcement or 

public safety agency, or any agent or employee of the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources 
when performing or exercising official duties or powers. 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 65 / 85



2 

3. Nothing in this ordinance shall prohibit the agricultural use of ATVs in rights of way, as defined in 
Minnesota Statute 84.92, Subd. 1d, or the use of ATVs to maintain permitted accesses over Public 
Road Rights of Way. 

 
4. Nothing in this ordinance is intended to prohibit the crossing of a County Public Road Right of Way, 

which is otherwise allowed by Minnesota Statute 84.928, Subdivision 1a, (1) through (5). 
 
 
Section 1.05 Violation. 
 

1. Anyone violating this ordinance shall be guilty as follows: 
 

A) For the first offense, the person shall be guilty of a petty misdemeanor and shall be punished by 
a fine of $120.00. 

 
B)  For a second offense, and for all subsequent offenses, the person shall be guilty of a 

misdemeanor and shall be punished according to law. 
 
 
Section 1.06 General Provisions. 

 
1. Severability: If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof is held invalid, said invalidity 

does not affect other provisions or applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application and for this purpose, the provisions of the ordinance are severeable. 

 
2. Enforceability: Sheriff’s deputies, State Troopers, Conservation officers, and any other peace officers 

are empowered to enforce this ordinance. 
 
3. Effective Date: This ordinance shall be effective on January 1, 2004, after passage by the County 

Board and publication according to law. 
 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 66 / 85



3 

 

Board of County Commissioners 
Washington County, Minnesota 

Resolution No. 2003-189 
 

  Date:  November 18, 2003    Department:  Transportation & Physical Development 
  Motion by Commissioner     Stafford     Seconded by Commissioner    Peterson      
 

Resolution Adopting the  
Washington County All Terrain Vehicle Ordinance 

 
 WHEREAS, MINN. STAT. § 84.92 allows Washington County to regulate the operation of all 

terrain vehicles (ATV’s) in County public road right of ways; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Washington County is experiencing considerable damage in its public right of ways 

because of the operation of ATV’s in its road right of ways, including but not limited to rutting, 
loss of vegetation and soil erosion; and 

 
 WHEREAS, on September 24, 2003, the Washington County Board of Commissioners held a 

public open house to solicit comments on the proposed ordinance and a County Board workshop 
on November 4, 2003 to hear further comments on the proposed ordinance; and 

 
 WHEREAS, on October 21, 2003, the Washington County Board of Commissioners conducted a 

public hearing to consider enacting an ordinance regulating the operation of ATV’s in the 
County’s public road right of ways and continued said hearing to November 18, 2003. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Washington County Board of 

Commissioners hereby adopts the Washington County Ordinance for the Management of All 
Terrain Vehicles in Washington County Rights of Way No. 168 as attached hereto. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Ordinance shall become effective on January 1, 2004. 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 

James R. Schug, County Administrator 
 

Dennis C. Hegberg, Chairman, County Board 

  YES NO 
HEGBERG   X 
KRIESEL   X 
PETERSON   X 
PULKRABEK    X 
STAFFORD   X 

  
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 67 / 85



ORDINANCE # 65/09
 

RELATING TO THE OPERATION OF MOTORIZED GOLF CARTS ON PUBLIC STREETS 
AND ROADWAYS WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF ELYSIAN

The City Council of the City of Elysian does ordain:

Section 1. Use and Operation of Golf Carts on Public Streets and Roadways

Subdivision 1.  Adoption by Reference of Minnesota Statute

Except as herein specifically addressed or modified the provisions of Minnesota statutes 
section 169.045 are hereby incorporated by reference.

Subdivision 2. Definition

A. For the purpose of this ordinance a golf cart is defined as; any vehicle designed for use 
primarily o a golf course and any golf cart type vehicle designed for use on a city street 
or roadway.

B. Motorized refers to any golf cart type vehicle propelled by any gas or electric motor.

Subdivision 3. Motorized Golf Carts on City Streets and Roadways.

Purpose

A. The State of Minnesota has authorized the use of motorized golf carts on designated 
roadways within a City on streets under their jurisdiction and authorized by the City 
Council through its ordinances.

B. The City Council of Elysian sees the need to limit the availability of access to City 
streets and roadways, using motorized golf carts, to persons who are age sixteen (16) 
or older and who have a valid and current driver’s license.

Subdivision 4. Issuing Officer.

A. The City Council shall determine the streets or roadways of operation and the 
hours of operation if more restrictive than the State Statute and deemed 
necessary for public safety reasons.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 68 / 85



B. The City Clerk/Administrator shall authorize the issuance of all permits and may 
recommend the denial of a permit if the applicants driving status is revoked, 
suspended or cancelled for prior violations. The City Clerk/Administrator shall 
collect a fee, as determined by the Council, for the issued permit.

Subdivision 5. Requirements for Permit.

Application for a permit shall be made in a form supplied by the City of Elysian and shall 
contain the information listed below. All permits shall be issued for a specific golf cart. The 
permit shall be issued with a specific license number; the applicant is responsible for 
obtaining self adhesive numbers at least three (3) inches tall and applying them to both sides 
of that specific golf cart.

A. All motorized golf cart owners must provide liability insurance at all times when 
operating on a public street or roadway. A certificate of insurance must be submitted 
at the time of permit application.

B. The make, model number, serial number and year of the motorized golf cart is 
required.

C. The applicant shall supply a current driver’s license showing the name, address and 
age. The driver’s license shall be photocopied for the City records.

D. The golf cart shall be inspected by the Clerk/Administrator to ascertain that it has 
head lights, rear lights, including brake lights, rearview mirror and an authorized slow 
moving vehicle sign.

E. The permit shall be issued for a calendar year (January 1st through December 31st) and 
may be renewed annually and a fee paid.

Subdivision 6.  Additional Requirements.

A. Motorized golf carts must display the slow moving vehicle emblem provided for in 
M.S. 169.522 when operating on a public street or roadway.

B. Every operator of a motorized golf cart has all the rights and duties applicable to 
the drivers of any other vehicle under the provisions of M.S. Chapter 169 except 
when these provisions cannot be reasonably applied to motorized golf carts and 
except as otherwise provided in M.S. 169.045, Subd. 7.

C. Motorized golf carts may be operated only on streets and roadways designated on 
the permit authorized by the City Council.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 69 / 85



D. Motorized golf carts may not be operated on State Highways or County Highways. 
Drivers may cross, at right angles, any highway intersecting a designated street or 
roadway.

E. Motorized golf carts may not be driven on any portion of the DNR State Trail. 
Drivers may cross the Trail where it intersects approved streets or roadways.

F. Hours of operation shall be from sunrise through sunset. Operation of a golf cart 
shall not be permitted during inclement weather or when visibility is impaired by 
weather, smoke, fog or at any time wherein there is insufficient light to clearly see 
persons and vehicles on the street at a distance of 500 feet.

G. The number of occupants allowed in a golf cart is limited to those that can be 
safely seated in the provided seating.

H. Children must be properly seated while the golf cart is in motion and may not be 
transported in a negligent manner.

I. Golf carts are not permitted to be driven on any sidewalks in the City of Elysian.

J. If a licensed Motorized golf cart is disabled through mechanical failure or the need 
for repairs, the permit may be temporarily transferred to another golf cart for a 
seven day period following verification of mechanical condition and insurance 
coverage by the City Clerk/Administrator.

Subdivision 7. Assumption of Liability

Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed as an assumption of liability by the City of Elysian 
for injuries to persons or property which may result from the operation of any motorized golf 
cart by a permit holder or the failure by the Sheriff to revoke a permit.

Subdivision 8. Violations and Penalties.

Any person violating any provision of this ordinance shall be guilty of a petty misdemeanor.

Ordinance was presented by Councilmember Stoen, seconded by Councilmember Atherton 
with the following vote being taken:

Voting Yes: Stoen, Atherton, Hanson, Opsahl, Rager

Voting No: None

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 70 / 85



Date this 13th. day of July, 2009

Attest:

_____________________________________
Patricia Nusbaum, Clerk Administrator

__________________________________
David Rager, Mayor

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 71 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 72 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 73 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 74 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 75 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 76 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 77 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 78 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 79 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 80 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 81 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 82 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 83 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 84 / 85



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 6/20/2017 Page 85 / 85


